
Pro Se 2 (Rev.12/16)Complaintand RequestforInjunction

UnitedStatesDistrict Court

for the

Eastern District of Virginia

Richmond

Ivan E. Raikiin

Plaintiff(s)
(Writethefull nameofeachplaintiffwho isfiling this complaint.
If the namesofall theplaintiffscannotfit in the spaceabove,
pleasewrite "seeattached"in the spaceandattach anadditional
pagewith thefull list ofnames.)

-V-

1. Virginia Department/BoardofElections;
2. Christopher E. Piper, in his official capacity as the

Commissioner, Virginia Departmentof Election;
3. John Findlay, in his officialcapacityas the

ExecutiveDirector,RepublicanPartyofVirginia;
4. Republican PartyofVirginia;
5. CommonwealthofVirginia

Defendant(s)
(Write thefull nameofeachdefendantwho is being sued.If the
namesofall the defendantscannotfit in thespaceabove,please
write "seeattached"in thespaceandattachan additionalpage
with thefull list ofnames.)

Division

CaseNo. <3 .

(to befilled in by the Clerk's Office)

COMPLAINT AND REQUESTFORINJUNCTION

L ThePartiesto This Complaint

A. ThePlaiiitifr(s)

Provide the informationbelow for each plaintiff named in the complaint. Attach additional pages if
needed.
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Name

StreetAddress

City and County

Ivan E. Raikiin, Candidatefor U.S. Senateand Petitioner

2221 S. Clark St.

Arlington
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Pro Se 2 (Rev. 12/16)Complaint and Request for Injunction

State and ZipCode

TelephoneNumber

E-mail Address

VA 22202

202-288-2541

ivan@raiklin.com

B. TheDefendant(s)

Provide theinformationbelow for eachdefendantnamed in thecomplaint,whetherthe defendantis an
individual, agovernmentagency, anorganization,or acorporation. For an individualdefendant,
include the person'sjob or title (ifknown). Attach additional pages if needed.
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DefendantNo. 1

Name

Jobor Title (if known)

StreetAddress

City andCounty

State and ZipCode

TelephoneNumber

E-mailAddress(if known)

DefendantNo. 2

Name

Jobor Title (if known)

StreetAddress

City and County

State and ZipCode

TelephoneNumber

E-mailAddress(if known)

DefendantNo. 3

Name

Jobor Title (if known)

StreetAddress

City and County

State and ZipCode

Virginia Board/DepartmentofElections

1100BankStreet

Richmond

VA 23219

804-864-8901

info@elections.virginia.gov

Christopher E. Piper, In his Official Capacity as

Commissioner,Virginia Departmentof Elections

1100BankStreet

Richmond

VA23219

800-552-9745

info@elections.virginia.gov

John Findlay, In his officialcapacityas

Executive Director, Republican PartyofVirginia

115 E. GraceStreet

Richmond

VA 23219
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ProSe 2 (Rev. 12/16)Complaintand Requestfor Injunction
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TelephoneNumber

E-mailAddress(if known)

DefendantNo. 4

Name

Job orTitle (if known)

StreetAddress

City and County

State and Zip Code

TelephoneNumber

E-mailAddress(if known)

DefendantNo. 5

Name

Jobor Title (if known)

StreetAddress

City andCounty

State and Zip Code

TelephoneNumber

E-mailAddress(if known)

(804)780-0111

jfindlav@rpv.org

RepublicanPartyofVirginia

115 E. GraceStreet

Richmond

Virginia 23219

804-780-0111

info@virginia.gop

CommonwealthofVirginia

Richmond

Virginia 23219

Case 3:18-cv-00288-JAG   Document 1   Filed 05/01/18   Page 3 of 42 PageID# 3



ProSe2(Rev. 12/16)ComplaintandRequestfor Injunction

n. Basisfor Jurisdiction

Federalcourtsarecourtsof limited jurisdiction(limited power). Generally,only twotypesof casescanbe
heardin federalcourt: casesinvolving afederalquestionandcasesinvolving diversityof citizenshipof the
parties. Under 28 U.S.C. § 1331,a case arising under the United StatesConstitutionor federal laws or treaties
is a federal question case. Under 28 U.S.C. § 1332, a case in which a citizenofone State sues a citizenof
another Stateor nationand the amountat stake is more than $75,000 is a diversityofcitizenshipcase. In a
diversityofcitizenshipcase, no defendantmay be a citizenofthe same Stateas anyplaintiff.

What is the basis for federal courtjurisdiction? (checkallthatapply)

X Federal question Diversityofcitizenship

Fill out the paragraphsin this section that apply to this case.

A. If theBasisfor JurisdictionIs a FederalQuestion

List the specific federal statutes, federal treaties, and/or provisionsofthe United States Constitution
that areat issuein this case.

1. U.S. Constitution:1stAmendment,14thAmendment;
2. Voting Rights Act

(name)

(name)

(name)

B.

Page 4of 12

If theBasisfor JurisdictionIs Diversityof Citizenship

1. The PIaintiff(s)

a. If the plaintiff is an individual

The plaintiff.

Stateof

b. If theplaintiff is a corporation

The plaintiff,

underthe lawsof theStateof (name)

and has its principal placeof business in the Stateof (name)

, is a citizenof
the

, is incorporated
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Pro Se 2 (Rev. 12/16)Complaint and Request for Injunction

(Ifmore than oneplaintiff is namedin the complaint,attachanadditionalpageprovidingthe
sameinformationfor eachadditionalplaintiff.)

2. TheDefendant(s)

a. If thedefendantis an individual

Thedefendant,(name) , is a citizenof

the Stateof (name) . Or is acitizenof

(foreign
nation)

b. If the defendantis acorporation

The defendant,(name) , is incorporated
under

the lawsof the Stateof (name) , and hasits

principal placeofbusiness in the Stateof(name)

Or is incorporated under the lawsof (foreignnation) ,

and has itsprincipalplaceofbusinessin (name)

(If more than one defendant isnamedin the complaint,attachanadditionalpageproviding
the same informationfor eachadditionaldefendant.)

3. TheAmount in Controversy

The amount incontroversy-theamountthe plaintiff claims thedefendantowes or the amount
at stake-ismore than $75,000, notcountinginterestand costsof court, because(explain):

in. StatementofClaim

Write a short and plain statementof the claim. Do not make legal arguments. State as briefly as possible the
facts showing that each plaintiff is entitled to the injunction or otherreliefsought. State how each defendant
was involved and what each defendant did that caused theplaintiff harm or violated theplaintiffs rights,

including the dates and placesof that involvementor conduct.If more than one claim is asserted, number each
claim and write a short and plain statementofeach claim in a separate paragraph. Attach additional pages if
needed.

A. Where did theeventsgiving rise to yourclaim(s)occur?

Page 5of 12
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Pro Se 2 (Rev. 12/16) Complaint and Request for Injunction

-March26,2018In theeveningIvan Ralkllnspokewith Dino Poncethe Republican
Partyof Virginia (RPV) Political Directorto schedulea pre-checkon Wednesday
morning March 28 at 10:30am. PhonecallsweremadebetweenIvan Raiklin and
the RPV throughoutthe dayto find out a goodday andtime to schedulethe pre-
check. Theentiretime, JohnFindlay, ExecutiveDirectorof the RPV,provided
significantpushbackclaiming thatothercandidateswereslottedto do a pre-check
on TuesdayMarch 27 andWednesdayMarch 28. Theseothertwo candidateswere
not ableto achievethe10,000signaturethresholdto evenconducta pre-check.
Meanwhile,the Ivan Raiklin for U.S.SenateCampaigninformedthe RPV Executive
Directorthat they would havewell over11,000. The RPV Directormentionedthat
12,500wasneededto initiate a pre-check. Sothe Campaignfocusedall efforts
andduring all of MondayMarch 26, TuesdayMarch 27, andthe morningof
WednesdayMarch 28 attainedthe minimum 12,500neededto conducta pre-
check.

Mar 26 9:55AM 804.828.0636Henrico,VA Richmond,VA 2— Findlay (Number
depictsphonenumberandnumberof minutesthecall lasted)
Mar 26 9:57AM 804.828.1111Henrico,VA Richmond,VA 9-Findlay/RPV
coordinatedto do pre-checkon Wednesday
Mar 26 10:37AM 804.828.9502Richmond,VA Richmond,VA 7-RPV

-March28

Two phonecallsweremadeto the RPV Political Directorto inform him that some
signatureswerestill being notarizedandwe would only beat the RPV headquarters
at 11:30am:

Mar 28 10:19AM 804.397.4771Richmond,VA Richmond,VA 8-Wewould not be
gettingto RPV until closerto 11:30aswe werestill gettingthe lastfew signatures
notarized

Mar 28 11:00AM 804.397.4771Richmond,VA Richmond,VA 4—Updateof our
statusasJacobCarasellaand NicholasHoskinswereshowingup to do pre-check
at this time.

At 11:30amthe RepublicanPartyof Virginia (RPV), underthesupervisionof
ExecutiveDirectorJohnFindlayat 115 E. GraceStreet.RichmondVA 23219
initiated a pre-checkof the 12,691 petition signaturessubmittedby the Ivan Raiklin
for US Senatecampaignto becertified for inclusionasa U.S.Senatecandidateon
theJune12, 2018Republicanprimary ballot. Va. Code§§ 24.2-506requiresa
minimum of 10,000total signaturesof registeredvotersfrom Virginia anda
minimum of 400 signaturesfrom eachof the11 congressionaldistrictsto favorably
certify asa U.S.Senatecandidatein Virginia. Thecampaignsubmitteda minimum
of over600signaturesfrom eachof thecongressionaldistrictspursuantto Va.
Code§§ 24.2-506.theVirginia Departmentof ElectionsUS SenateCandidate
Bulletin andthe RPV StatewideBallot AccessGuidance.At ~16:15the Executive

Director, JohnFindlay,aftertwo congressionaldistrictswerecheckedandcleared,
statedhewasnot comfortablewith how thecheckwasgoing anddemandedthe
campaign(using expletives)returnthefollowing day, March 29,the lastdaythe
signaturesweredueto theVirginia Departmentof Elections. Raiklin attemptedto
influencethe RPV Chairman,JohnWhitbeckvia phonecall/textto stepin and
overrulethis decision,however,wasunsuccessful.

Page 6of 12
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Pro Se 2 (Rev. 12/16)Complaint and Request for Injunction

Page 7of 12

B. What date and approximate time did the events giving rise to your claim(s) occur?

Continued from A above. Thisdecisiondenied the Raiklincampaignany ability torecover
from any petition signature deficiencies as time was fleeting to deploy any people to collect
moresignaturesshouldthe need arise. 24 hoursof recoverytime turnedinto none with this
decisionto delay.

Herearethe phonecalls madethat dayandthesummaryof conversationshad
along with the# of minuteseachcall took:

PHONECALL: Mar 28 4:18 PM 703.477.8476Richmond,VA VM Deposit,CL 1 -- --
-- Call to JohnWhitbeck,Chairmanof the RepublicanPartyof Virginia, did not
answercall.

TEXT MESSAGES:

4:19pmRaiklin: "Needto talk ASAP!" We just got thrown out during thecount/
pre-check."

4:20pmWhitbeck: "I can'tpick up" "Who threw u out?"
4:20pmRaiklin: "Findlay, sayingthat hewantsto do It tomorrow."
4:22pmRaiklin: "Everythingwasgoing smoothwith Dino, we cleared2

districtsand in the middleof countingtwo otherdistricts,thedatabasestarted
"going slow". Findlaysaid I don't like how this is going andsaidto comebackin
tomorrowat 9 am."

4:24pmWhitbeck: "Lemmestepour [sic] andcall him"

PHONECALL:

Mar 28 4:40 PM 703.477.8476Richmond,VA VM Deposit,CL 1 John
Whitbeckdid not answer.

TEXT MESSAGES:

4:47 pm Raiklin: "Pleasecall me, I am not comfortablewith waiting until
tomorrowfor pre-check...Isensethereis somethingmore. Particularlythe way he
interactedwith my staff without my presence.Disrespectfulwith expletives."

4:52Whitbeck: "He saysyour staff refusedto sayif hewasrecordinghim"
4:53Whitbeck: "And hewarnedhim four timesto stop interruptinghim"
4:54 Raiklin: "My staff tell medefinitively theywerenot recording.
4:59 Raiklin: "First questionmy CM askedwaswhy arewe interruptingthe

countandsecondquestionwascanwe get Ivan to be hereto hearthis for
transparency... Dino's non verbalqueuesexudedsomethingway morethanjust a
proceduralissue. Pleasecall, muchmorecomplicatedthantext."
Ivan Raiklin wasunsuccessfulin convincingtheChairmanof the RepublicanParty,
JohnWhitbeckto haveJohnFindlaychangehis mind aboutcompletingthe pre-
checkon March 28.
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Pro Se 2 (Rev. 12/16) Complaint and Request for Injunction

C. What are the facts underlying your claim(s)?(Forexample: Whathappenedtoyou? Whodidwhat?
Wasanyoneelseinvolved? Whoelsesawwhathappened?)

Page 8of 12
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Pro Se 2 (Rev. 12/16)Complaintand Request for Injunction

Continuedfrom B above.

-On March 29 at 0900am,thecampaignretumedto conductthe pre-check
certificationat 115 E. GraceStreet,Richmond,VA 23219. Perthe RPV Statewide
Ballot AccessGuidance,the RPV proceededto countthesignaturesandthen
checkeachcongressionaldistrict with the9th congressionaldistrict beingthe last
onechecked(the 9th isthefarthestdistrict geographicallyfrom Richmond). At
approximately1500theCampaigncompletedthe pre-checkof theten out of the
elevencongressionaldistrictswith the9th still to becounted,but with the needto
submitthe petitionsto the Departmentof Electionsby the 1700filing deadline.
After the Raiklin campaignsubmittedthe petition andfiling documentsto the DoE
timely, the RPV Political Directorobtainedthosepetitionsto continuethecheckof
the9th Congressionaldistrict in what now becamethe postcheck. The RPV
disqualifieda sufficient numberof signaturesfrom the9th CongressionalDistrict
usingan incorrectdatabasewith faulty data(GOP DataCenter)ratherthanthe
statutoryrequiredVirginia Voter RegistrationSystempublishedby the Department
of Electionsandfurtherconcludedthatthe Raiklin campaignfell shortof the
required400signaturesto certify asa USSenatecandidatein the Republican
primaryon June12, 2018. Presentwere NicholasHoskins(Raiklin Campaign
Manager),JacobCarasella(Raiklin Political Director), Ivan Raiklin (USSenate
Candidate),JohnFindlay (RPV ExecutiveDirector), Phil Fickes(Raiklin Field
Director) JohnMarch (RPV CommunicationsDirector), Dino Ponce(RPV Political
Director). (1st, 14thAmendmentsU.S. Constitution).
After disqualificationwascomplete,thefirst personto call mewastheChairmanof
the RepublicanPartyof Virginia with thefollowing:
Mar 29 9:14 PM 703.477.8476Richmond,VA Incoming, CL 14 -dependingon how
you takethis will determineyour political future, andalso urgedRaiklin that his next
call after hangingup with Whitbeckshouldbeto DelegateNick Freitas.
-On April 4, the Raiklin campaignfiled an appealof petition signatureinsufficiency
with the Departmentof Electionspursuantto 1VAC20-50-30within the required5
days.
-On April 5, the Departmentof Elections(DoE)respondedvia email andpostal
servicewith a refusalto hearan appeal. The DoE statedthattheappealprocess
wasonly affordedto independentcandidatesanddid not applyto partynominees.
In its response,the Departmentof Electionswrote, "Virginia law doesnot allow
candidatesfor nominationby a partyprimaryto appealthis typeof determinationto
theStateBoardof Elections. Sections24.2-506and24.2-543of the Codeof

Virginia and1VAC20-50-30[...] establishpetition requirementsandappellate
proceduresfor independentcandidates,which do not apply to candidatesfor
nominationby a political party. Instead,petition requirementsfor candidatesfor
nominationby a non-presidentialprimaryareestablishedby Va. CodeSection
24.2-521. Section24.2-521doesnot providean avenueby which candidatesfor
nominationby a primarycanappeala political party'sdeterminationthattheyhave
failed to submitsufficient petition signatures.As the lawsandregulationyou
referencedo not applyto individualswho areseekingtheir political party's
nominationin a primaryelection,andVirginia law doesnot authorizean appealfor
candidatesfor partynomination,thusyou arenot eligible for an appealhearing
pursuantto Section24.2-506,anda hearingwill not bescheduled."
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Pro Se 2 (Rev. 12/16)Complaint and Request for Injunction

-On April 6, the RPVaffordedthe Raiklin campaigntheability to conducta partial recountusing
the MontgomeryCountyVoter RegistrationList from theVirginia Voter RegistrationSystem,rather
thantheentire9th CongressionalDistrict Voter RegistrationList. The partial recountidentified 62
incorrectlydisqualifiedsignaturesbeforeit wasstopped.
-On April 20, aftersomepushbackfrom the ExecutiveDirectorof the RPV, the Raiklin campaign
finally obtainedcopiesof all of the9th congressionaldistrict petition signaturesthatthe RPV
checkedto do a full auditagainsttheVirginia Voter RegistrationSystemfrom the9th
congressionaldistrict.
-April 23, IvanRaiklin for US SenateCampaignmailed amoneyorderin thesumof $923to the
Virginia Departmentof Electionswith an invoiceto purchasethe9th CongressionalDistrict
Database.

-April 24, At 9:22 ESTthe US PostalServicedeliveredthe MoneyOrderto the Boardof elections,
see: Tracking#: 9505514846438114210005
Without accessto the9th CongressionalDistrict Virginia Voter RegistrationSystem,the Raiklin
campaignhasidentified 415 signaturesof Virginia registeredvotersfrom the9th Congressional
District betweenthe initial partial recountusingthe MontgomeryCountyVirginia Voter
RegistrationSystemdataandtheGOP DataCenterdata. This includesat least309of these
signaturescertified by the RPV andanotherminimum of 106petitionersthat weredisqualifiedby
1VAC20-50-20sectionC. 5 andsectionE. 3.

-April 25: Ivan RaiklincontactedtheVirginia Departmentof Electionsto confirm the MoneyOrder
for $923hadarrived withthe3 pageinvoice, thecall wasplacedwith AndreaT. Walker,
Administrative& Office Specialist,Departmentof Electionsat 1100BankStreet,Richmond,
Virginia 23219,email: andrea.walker@elections.virginia.govto thephonenumber804864-8902,
alternatenumberis 804552-9745. Andreaexplainedthatthe packagedid not arrive, which did
not matchwith the informationfrom the USPS'websiteusingthetracking number:
9505514846438114210005.Receiptsattached.
-April 27-TheCampaignconfirmedthroughthe United StatesPostalServicethat the package
hadin fact arrivedat the Departmentof Electionson Tuesdaymorning. However,afterfurther
inquiry, theVirginia Departmentof Electionsat 2:40pmstatedthat becauseIvan Raiklinwas"no
longera candidate",the Departmentof Electionswould not providethe9th CongressionalDistrict
Virginia Voter RegistrationSystemList to thecampaignandtheonly way that Ivan Raiklincould
obtainthedatabasewasto file his candidacyasan independentcandidate,triggeringanother
filing fee of candidacy. Raiklin refusedto disownthe RepublicanPartyandthuswasnot ableto
obtainthe9th CongressionalDistrict Virginia Voter RegistrationSystemList to conducta proper
analysisof the petition signaturesfrom the9th CongressionalDistrict.

IV. IrreparableInjury

Explain why monetary damages at a later time would not adequately compensate you for the injuries you
sustained, are sustaining, or will sustain as a resultof the events described above, or why such compensation
could not bemeasured.

Page 10of 12
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Pro Se 2 (Rev. 12/16) Complaint and Request for Injunction

Monetary damages now or in the future will not afford the plaintiffs to have thecandidateof their choosing on
the primary ballot.

V. Relief

State briefly and precisely what damages or otherrelieftheplaintiff asks the court to order. Do not make legal
arguments.Includeany basis forclaimingthat thewrongsallegedarecontinuingat thepresenttime. Include
the amountsofany actual damages claimed for the acts alleged and the basis for these amounts. Include any
punitive or exemplaiy damages claimed, the amounts, and the reasons you claim you are entitled to actual or
punitivemoneydamages.

1. Enjoin theVirginia Boardof Electionsfrom printing of ballotsfor theJune12 Republican
primaryelectionwithout the nameIvan E. Raiklinthereonasa candidatefor the United
StatesSenate.

2. Enjoin theVirginia Boardof Electionsto movethe primaryelectiondateto an equal
numberof daysthat the Raiklin campaignwasheld off of the ballot. For instance,if the
Boardof Electionscertifiesthe Raiklin for US Senatecandidacyon April 27 (ratherthanthe
original dateof March 29), it would be equitableto movetheelection28 daysfrom June12
to July 10, 2018.
3. Monetarydamagesin theamountof $361,823
-Lossof campaignfundraising ability for all ofApril $350,000
-Attorney Fees$1Ok
-9th CongressionalDistrict Database$923
-Travel Expenses$500
-Filing Fee$400
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Pro Se 2 (Rev. 12/16}Complaint and Request for Injunction

VI. CertificationandClosing

UnderFederal RuleofCivil Procedure11, bysigningbelow, I certify to the bestofmy knowledge,
information, andbeliefthat this complaint: (1) is not being presented for an improper purpose, such as to harass,
cause unnecessarydelay, orneedlesslyincreasethe costof litigation; (2) issupportedby existinglaw or by a

nonfiivolousargument for extending, modifying, or reversing existing law; (3) the factual contentions have
evidentiarysupportor, if specificallyso identified, will likely haveevidentiarysupport after areasonable

opportunity for further investigation or discoveiy; and (4) the complaint otherwise complies with the
requirementsofRule 11.

A. ForPartiesWithoutanAttorney

I agree to provide theClerk'sOffice with any changes to my address wherecase-relatedpapers may
be served. I understand that my failure to keep a current address on file with theClerk'sOffice may
result in the dismissalofmy case.

Dateofsigning: ^ z-olS'

SignatureofPlaintiff

PrintedNameofPlaintiff jT\Jc\\/\^ j

B. ForAttorneys

Dateofsigning:

SignatureofAttorney

PrintedNameofAttorney

BarNumber

Nameof Law Firm

StreetAddress

State and Zip Code

TelephoneNumber

E-mail Address

Page 12of 12
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UNITED STATESDISTRICT COURT

FORTHE EASTERNDISTRICT OFVIRGINIA

RICHMOND DIVISION

IVANE.RAIKLIN

V.

JOHNFINDLAY, IN HIS
OFFICIAL CAPAOTY AS THE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOROF

THE REPUBLICANPARTY OF

VIRGINLV;
REPUBLICANPARTY OF

VIRGINLV;
CHRISTOPHERE. PIPER,IN
HIS OFFICIAL CAPACITY AS

THE COMMISSIONER;
VIRGINIA DEPARTMENTOF

ELECTIONS;
VIRGINIA DEPARTMENTOF

ELECTIONS;
COMMONWEALTH OF

VIRGINIA

CIVIL NO. COMPLAINT

PARTIES

1. Your Plaintiff, Ivan E. Raiklin isandwas,at all timesrelevantherein,a citizen of the

United Statesanda residentof FairfaxCounty,Commonwealthof Virginia, and

candidatefor the United StatesSenatefor the Commonwealthof Virginia, seekingthe

Republicannominationin the2018party primary, all withinthejurisdictionof this court.

2221 Clark Street,Arlington, VA 22202.Email: ivan@raiklin.com.Phone: 202-288-2541

2. DefendantJohnFindlay, is andwas,at all timesrelevantherein,a citizen of the United

States,a residentof Virginia, in his official capacityasExecutiveDirector, Republican
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Partyof Virginia ("RPV"), residentof theCommonwealthof Virginia. 115 E.Grace

Street,Richmond,VA 23219,email: ifindlav@rpv.ora.804-780-0111

3. DefendantRepublicanParty of Virginia, isandwasatall timesrelevantherein, a political

party registeredin theCommonwealthof Virginia. For contactinformationsee2 above.

4. DefendantChristopherE. Piper, is andwas,at all timesrelevantherein,a citizen of the

United States,a residentof theCommonwealthof Virginia, in his officialcapacityasthe

Commissioner,Virginia Departmentof Elections("DoE") DoE andVBE areused

interchangeablyin this brief, additionally. Departmentof ElectionsandVirginia Boardof

Electionsareusedinterchangeablyin this brief. WashingtonBuilding, 1100BankStreet,

First Floor, Richmond,VA 23219,info@elections.aov:800-552-9745

5. DefendantCommonwealthof Virginia Departmentof Elections,is andwas,at all times

relevantherein,anexecutivebranchentity of theCommonwealthof Virginia, Washington

Building, 1100BankStreet,First Floor, Richmond,VA 23219,info@elections.aov:

800-552-9745.

6. DefendantState,Commonwealthof Virginia, is andwas,at all timesrelevantherein,a

political subdivisionof the United Statesof America.

JURISDICTIONAND VENUE

6TheCourt hasjurisdiction overthis action pursuantto 28 U.S. CodeSection1331 -

Federalquestionand28 U.S. CodeSection1343(3)"To redressthedeprivation,undercolor of

any Statelaw, statute,ordinance,regulation,customor usage,of any right, privilegeor immunity

securedby theConstitutionof the United Statesor by any Act of Congressproviding for equal

rights of citizensor of all personswithin thejurisdiction of the United States."
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This caseseel<sremedyunder42 U.S. CodeSection1983and FRCP65. This court

may issuea temporaryrestrainingorderand preliminaryinjunction pursuantto FRCP65(b).

Venueis properovereachclaim andeachdefendantpursuantto 28 U.S. CodeSection1391(b)

becausea substantialpartof theeventsor omissionsgiving riseto Plaintiffs claimsoccurredin

this district.

I. ISSUES:

A. Did JohnFindlay, ExecutiveDirectorof the RepublicanPartyof Virginia in his official capacity,

while acting undercolor of law asan agentof theVirginia Boardof Electionsduring the

pre-certificationprocessof political candidatesviolatetheVoting RightsAct, Section10101 (b) &

1stAmendmentto the U.S. Constitutionwhen he refusedto conducta ballot accesspre-check

in a timely mannerandthreatenedto not conducta pre-checkof thecampaignif thecampaign

did not agreeto his delayof the pre-check?

B. Did JohnFindlay,ExecutiveDirector ofthe RepublicanPartyof Virginia in his official

capacity, while actingundercolor of lawasan agentof theVirginia Board ofElectionsduring the

pre-certificationprocessof politicalcandidatesviolate the 14th Amendmentto the U.S.

Constitution Equal ProtectionClausewhen heconductedtheballotaccesspre-checkof the Ivan

Raiklin for USSenateCampaignin a uniquely dissimilarmannerto theotherfour U.S.Senate

Campaignsthatfiled their petitions?

C. Did the Virginia Departmentof Elections violate the U.S.Constitution's14thAmendment

Equal Protection and DueProcessClauseswhen itrefusedto hearplaintiffs' appealof the
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ExecutiveDirectorof the RepublicanPartyof Virginia's decisionto disqualify Ivan Raiklinasa

candidatefor U.S. SenateCampaigndueto petitionsignatureinsufficiency?

D. DoesVirginia AdministrativeCode1VAC20-50-20sectionC. 5 andsectionE. 3 requiringa

petition signaturebefrom thesameprecinctasthat listed in theVirginia RegisteredVoter

Systemdatabase-fromthesameCongressionalDistrict-violatethe 1stand 14thAmendments

to the U.S. Constitution?

II. LAWS PERTINENTTO CASE:

VOTING RIGHTS ACT

U.S. Code:Title 52- VOTINGAND ELECTIONS.Subtitle I - Voting Rights
52 U.S. Code§ 10101- Voting rights

(a) Race,color, or previousconditionnot to affect right to vote; uniformstandardsfor
voting qualifications;errorsor omissionsfrom papers;literacytests;agreements
betweenAttorney GeneralandStateor local authorities;definitions

(2)No personacting undercolor of law shall—
(B) denythe right of any individual to vote in anyelectionbecauseof
anerroror omissionon any recordor paperrelatingto any
application,registration,or otheractrequisiteto voting, if sucherror
or omissionis not materialin determiningwhethersuchindividual is
qualified underStatelaw to vote in suchelection;or

(b) Intimidation, threats,or coercion
No person,whetheractingundercolorof law or otherwise,shall intimidate,
threaten,coerce,or attemptto intimidate,threaten,or coerceanyotherpersonfor
the purposeof interferingwith the right of suchotherpersonto voteor to voteas
hemaychoose,or ofcausingsuchotherpersonto votefor, or not to votefor, any
candidatefor theoffice of President,Vice President,presidentialelector,Memberof the
Senate,or Memberof the Houseof Representatives,Delegatesor Commissionersfrom
theTerritoriesor possessions,atanygeneral,special,or primaryelectionheld solely
or in partfor thepurposeof selectingor electinganysuchcandidate.(Executive
Directorof RPV did soundercolorof Law)

(c) Preventiverelief; injunction; rebuttableliteracy presumption;liability of United
Statesfor costs;Stateasparty defendant
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Wheneverany personhasengagedor therearereasonablegroundsto believe
thatany personis aboutto engagein anyactor practicewhich would depriveany
otherpersonof any right or privilegesecuredby subsection(a) or (b), the
Attorney Generalmay institutefor the UnitedStates,or in thenameof the United
States,a civil actionor otherproperproceedingfor preventiverelief, includingan
applicationfor a permanentor temporaryinjunction, restrainingorder,or other
order. If in any suchproceedingliteracy is a relevantfact thereshall bea rebuttable
presumptionthatany personwho hasnot beenadjudgedan incompetentandwho has
completedthesixth gradein a publicschoolin, or a privateschoolaccreditedby, any
Stateor territory, the District of Columbia,or theCommonwealthof PuertoRico where
instructionis carriedon predominantlyin the English language,possessessufficient
literacy, comprehension,and intelligenceto vote in any election.In any proceeding
hereunderthe United Statesshall be liable for coststhesameasa privateperson.
Whenever,in a proceedinginstitutedunderthis subsectionanyofficial of a Stateor
subdivisionthereofis allegedto havecommittedanyactor practiceconstitutinga
deprivationof any right or privilegesecuredby subsection(a), theactor practice
shallalsobedeemedthatof theStateandtheStatemay bejoinedasa party
defendantand, if, prior to theinstitutionof suchproceeding,suchofficial has
resignedor hasbeenrelievedof his office and no successorhasassumedsuch
office, theproceedingmay be institutedagainsttheState.

Chapter103- ENFORCEMENTOF VOTING RIGHTS

(c) Definitions
(1) Theterms"vote" or "voting" shall includeall actionnecessaryto makea vote
effectivein any primary, special,or generalelection,including, butnot limited to,
registration,listing pursuantto this chapter,or otheractionrequiredby law prerequisite
to voting, castinga ballot, andhavingsuchballotcountedproperlyandincludedin the
appropriatetotalsof votescastwith respectto candidatesfor public or partyoffice and
propositionsfor which votesarereceivedin anelection.

U.S. CONSTITUTION:

1stAmendment: "Congressshallmakeno law [...] abridgingthefreedomto petitionthe
Governmentfor a redressof grievances."

5th Amendment: "No personshall [...] bedeprivedof life, liberty, or property,withoutdue
processof law."

14thAmendment: "No Stateshall makeor enforceany law which shall abridgethe privilegesor
immunitiesof citizensof the United States;norshallanyStatedepriveanypersonof life,
liberty, orproperty,withoutdueprocessof law, nordenyto anypersonwithin its
Jurisdictiontheequalprotectionof thelaws."
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15th Amendment: "The right ofcitizensof the United Statesto voteshall not bedeniedor
abridged by theUnited Statesor by anyStateon account of race,color, or previousconditionof
servitude."

19thAmendment: The right of citizensof the United Statesto voteshall not bedeniedor
abridgedby the United Statesor by anyStateon accountof sex.

VIRIGINIA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE

1VAC20-50-20.Material Omissionsfrom CandidatePetitionsandPetitionSignature
Qualifications

C. Thefollowing omissionsrelatedto individual petition signaturesarealwaysmaterial
andany petition signaturecontainingsuchomissionshall be renderedinvalid if:

5. Thesignerprovidedanaddressthatdoesnot matchthe petitionsigner's
addressin theVirginia voter registrationsystem,unlessthesigner
providedanaddressthatis within thesameprecinctwherea voter is
currentlyregisteredin theVirginia voter registrationsystem,andthesigner
canbe reasonablyidentified asthesameregisteredvoter.

E. A signatureupona petitionshall be includedin thecounttowardmeetingthe petition
signaturerequirementsonly if:

1. Thepetitionsigneris a qualifiedvoterwho is maintainedon theVirginia voter
registrationsystemeither(i)with active statusor (ii) with inactivestatusand
qualified to vote fortheoffice for whichthe petitionwascirculated;
2. Thesignerprovideshis name;and
3. Thesignerprovidesanaddressthatmatchesthe petitionsigner's
addressin theVirginia voter registrationsystem,or thesignerprovidedan
addressthat is within thesameprecinctwherea voter is currently
registeredin theVirginia voterregistrationsystem,and thesignercanbe
reasonablyidentified asthesameregisteredvoter.

III. FACTS:

-March26, 2018 intheevening IvanRaiklin spokewith DinoPoncethe Republican

Party ofVirginia (RPV) Political Directorto schedulea pre-check on WednesdaymorningMarch

28 at 10:30am. PhonecallsweremadebetweenIvan Raiklin andthe RPV throughouttheday

to find out a good day and time toschedulethe pre-check. The entire time, JohnFindlay,

Executive Director of theRPV, provided significant push back claiming thatothercandidates
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wereslottedto do apre-checkon TuesdayMarch 27andWednesdayMarch 28. Theseother

two candidateswerenot ableto achievethe 10,000signaturethresholdto evenconducta

pre-check. Meanwhile,the Ivan Ralklln for U.S.SenateCampaigninformedthe RPV Executive

Directorthattheywould havewell over 11,000. The RPV Directormentionedthat 12,500was

neededto initiate apre-check.SotheCampaignfocusedall effortsandduring all of Monday

March 26,TuesdayMarch 27,andthe morningof WednesdayMarch 28 attainedtheminimum

12,500neededto conducta pre-check.

Mar 26 9:55AM 804.828.0636Henrico,VA Richmond,VA 2— Findlay (Numberdepicts

phonenumberandnumberof minutesthecall lasted)

Mar 26 9:57AM 804.828.1111Henrico,VA Richmond,VA 9—Findlay/RPVcoordinatedto do

pre-checkon Wednesday

Mar 26 10:37AM 804.828.9502Richmond,VA Richmond,VA 7—RPV

-March 28

Two phonecallsweremadeto the RPV Political Directorto inform him thatsomesignatures

werestill being notarizedandwe would only beat the RPV headquartersat 11:30am:

Mar 28 10:19AM 804.397.4771Richmond,VA Richmond,VA 8—Wewould not be

gettingto RPV until closerto 11:30aswe werestill gettingthe lastfew signaturesnotarized

Mar 28 11:00AM 804.397.4771Richmond,VA Richmond,VA 4—Updateof ourstatusasJacob

Carasellaand NicholasHoskinswereshowingup to do pre-checkat this time.

At 11:30amthe RepublicanPartyof Virginia (RPV), underthesupervisionof Executive

DirectorJohnFindlayat 115 E.GraceStreet.RichmondVA 23219initiated a pre-checkof the

12,691 petition signaturessubmittedby the Ivan Raiklin for USSenatecampaignto becertified

for inclusionasa U.S. Senatecandidateon theJune12, 2018Republicanprimary ballot. Va.

Code 24.2-506requiresa minimum of 10,000total signaturesof registeredvotersfrom
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Virginia and aminimumof 400signaturesfrom eacli of the11 congressional districts to

favorablycertify asa U.S. Senatecandidate inVirginia. The campaign submitted aminimum of

over 600signaturesfrom eachof thecongressionaldistrictspursuantto Va. Code 24.2-506.

theVirginia Departmentof ElectionsUS SenateCandidateBulletin andthe RPV Statewide

BallotAccessGuidance.At ~16:15 the ExecutiveDirector,JohnFindlay, after two

congressionaldistrictswerecheckedandcleared,statedhewasnot comfortablewith how the

checkwasgoing anddemandedthecampaign(using expletives) return thefollowing day, March

29, the last daythesignaturesweredueto theVirginia Departmentof Elections. Raiklin

attemptedto influencethe RPV Chairmanvia phonecall/textto stepin andoverrulethis

decision,however,wasunsuccessful.This decisiondeniedthe Raiklin campaignanyability to

recoverfrom any petition signaturedeficienciesastime wasfleeting to deployany peopleto

collect moresignaturesshouldthe needarise. 24 hoursof recoverytime turnedinto nonewith

this decisionto delay.

Herearethe phonecalls madethatdayandthesummaryof conversationshad along withthe#

of minuteseachcall took:

PHONECALL: Mar 28 4:18 PM 703.477.8476Richmond,VA VM Deposit,CL 1 Call to

Chairmanof the RepublicanPartyof Virginia, did not answercall.

TEXT MESSAGES:

4:19pmRaiklin: "Needto talk ASAP!" We justgot thrown out during the

count/pre-check."

4:20pmChairmanRPV: "I can'tpick up" "Whothrew u out?"

8
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4:20pmRaiklin: "Findlay,sayingthat hewantsto do it tomorrow."

4:22pmRaiklin: "Everythingwasgoing smoothwith Dino, we cleared2 districtsand in

themiddle of counting twootherdistricts,thedatabasestarted"going slow". Findlay said I don't

like how this isgoing andsaidto comebackin tomorrowat 9 am."

4:24pmChairmanRPV: "Lemmestepour [sic] andcall him"

PHONECALL:

Mar 28 4:40 PM 703.477.8476Richmond,VA VM Deposit,CL 1 Chairmanof the RPV did

not answer.

TEXT MESSAGES:

4:47 pm Raiklin: "Pleasecall me, I am not comfortablewith waiting until tomorrowfor

pre-check...I sensethereis somethingmore. Particularlytheway he interactedwith my staff

without my presence.Disrespectfulwith expletives."

4:52 ChairmanRPV: "Hesaysyour staff refusedto sayif hewasrecordinghim"

4:53 ChairmanRPV: "And hewarnedhim four timesto stopinterruptinghim"

4:54 Raiklin: "My stafftell medefinitively theywerenot recording.

4:59 Raiklin: "First questionmy CM askedwaswhy arewe interruptingthe countand

secondquestionwascanwe get Ivan to behereto hearthis for transparency... Dino's non

verbalqueuesexudedsomethingway morethanjusta proceduralissue. Pleasecall, much

morecomplicatedthantext."

Ivan Raiklin wasunsuccessfulin convincingtheChairmanof the RepublicanPartyto

haveJohnFindlay changehis mindaboutcompletingthe pre-checkon March 28.
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-On March 29 at 0900am,thecampaignreturnedto conductthepre-checkcertification

at 115 E. GraceStreet,Richmond,VA 23219. Perthe RPV StatewideBallot AccessGuidance,

the RPV proceededto countthesignaturesandthencheckeachcongressionaldistrictwith the

9th congressionaldistrict beingthe lastonechecked(the9th isthefarthestdistrict

geographicallyfrom Richmond). At approximately1500theCampaigncompletedthe pre-check

of theten out of theelevencongressionaldistrictswith the9th still to becounted,but with the

needto submitthe petitionsto the Departmentof Electionsby the 1700filing deadline. After the

Raiklin campaignsubmittedthe petition andfiling documentsto the DoE timely, the RPV

Political Directorobtainedthosepetitionsto continuethecheckof the 9th Congressionaldistrict

in what now becamethe postcheck. TheRPV disqualifieda sufficient numberof signatures

from the9th CongressionalDistrict usingan incorrectdatabasewith faulty data(GOPData

Center)ratherthanthestatutoryrequiredVirginia Voter RegistrationSystempublishedby the

Departmentof Electionsandfurther concludedthatthe Raiklin campaignfell shortof the

required400signaturesto certify asa USSenatecandidatein the Republicanprimaryon June

12, 2018. PresentwereNicholasHoskins(Raiklin CampaignManager),JacobCarasella

(Raiklin Political Director), Ivan Raiklin (USSenateCandidate),JohnFindlay (RPVExecutive

Director), PhilFickes(Raiklin Field Director)JohnMarch (RPV CommunicationsDirector), Dino

Ponce(RPV Political Director). (1st,14thAmendmentsU.S. Constitution).

After disqualificationwascomplete,thefirst personto call mewasthe Chairmanof the

RepublicanPartyof Virginia with the following:

Mar 29 9:14 PM 703.477.8476Richmond,VA Incoming, CL 14-dependingon how youtakethis

will determineyour political future,andalsourgedRaiklinthat his next callafterhangingup with

theChairmanof the RPV shouldbeto oneof theotherU.S. SenateCandidates.
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-OnApril 4, theRaiklin campaignfiled an appeal ofpetitionsignatureinsufficiencywith

the Departmentof Electionspursuant to1\/AC20-5Q-3Qwithin therequired5 days.

-On April 5, the Department of Elections(DoE) respondedvia email and postal service

with a refusal to hear an appeal. The DoEstatedthat the appealprocesswasonly affordedto

independentcandidatesand did not apply to party nominees. In itsresponse,the Department of

Elections wrote,"Virginia lawdoesnot allowcandidatesfor nomination by a party primaryto

appealthis type of determinationto theStateBoardof Elections. Sections24.2-506and

24.2-543of theCodeof Virginia and1VAC20-50-30[...] establishpetition requirementsand

appellateproceduresfor independentcandidates,which do notapply to candidatesfor

nominationby a political party. Instead,petition requirementsfor candidatesfor nominationby a

non-presidentialprimary areestablishedby Va. CodeSection24.2-521. Section24.2-521does

not providean avenueby which candidatesfor nominationby a primary canappeala political

party'sdeterminationthatthey havefailed to submitsufficient petition signatures.As the laws

and regulationyou referencedo not apply to individualswho areseekingtheir political party's

nominationin a primaryelection,andVirginia law doesnot authorizean appealfor candidates

for party nomination,thusyou arenot eligible for an appealhearingpursuantto Section

24.2-506,anda hearingwill not bescheduled."

-On April 6, the RPV affordedthe Raiklin campaigntheability to conducta partial

recountusingthe MontgomeryCountyVoter RegistrationList from theVirginia Voter

RegistrationSystem,ratherthantheentire9th CongressionalDistrict Voter RegistrationList.

The partial recountidentified 62 incorrectly disqualifiedsignaturesbeforeit wasstopped.

-On April 20, aftersomepushbackfrom the ExecutiveDirectorof the RPV,the Raiklin

campaignfinally obtainedcopiesof all of the9th congressionaldistrict petitionsignaturesthat
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the RPVchecked to do afull audit against theVirginia VoterRegistrationSystemfrom the 9th

congressionaldistrict.

-April 23, Ivan Raiklin for USSenateCampaignmailed a moneyorderin thesum of

$923 to theVirginia DepartmentofElectionswith aninvoiceto purchase the 9th Congressional

District Database.

-April 24, At 9:22 ESTthe US PostalServicedeliveredthe MoneyOrderto the Board of

elections,see: Tracking#: 9505514846438114210005

Without accessto the9th CongressionalDistrict VirginiaVoter RegistrationSystem,the

Raiklin campaignhasidentified 415signaturesof Virginia registeredvotersfrom the9th

CongressionalDistrict betweenthe initial partial recountusingthe MontgomeryCountyVirginia

Voter RegistrationSystemdataandthe GOPDataCenterdata. This includesat least309of

thesesignaturescertified by the RPV andanotherminimum of 106petitionersthatwere

disqualifiedby 1VAC20-50-20sectionC. 5 andsectionE. 3.

-April 25: Ivan RaiklincontactedtheVirginia Departmentof Electionsto confirm the

Money Orderfor $923hadamvedwith the3 pageinvoice, thecall wasplacedwith AndreaT

Walker, Administrative & OfficeSpecialist,Departmentof Electionsat 1100 BankStreet,

Richmond,Virginia 23219,email: andrea.walk0r@elections.vjrainia.aovto the phonenumber

804864-8902,alternatenumberis 804552-9745. Andreaexplainedthatthe packagedid not

arrive, which did not matchwith the informationfrom the USPS'websiteusingthetracking

number: 9505514846438114210005.Receiptsattached.

-April 27-TheCampaignconfirmedthroughthe UnitedStatesPostalServicethatthe

packagehad in fact arrived atthe Departmentof Electionson Tuesdaymorning. HOwever,

after furtherInquiry, theVirginia Departmentof Electionsat2:40pmstatedthat becauseIvan

Raiklinwas"no longera candidate",the Departmentof Electionswould not providethe9th
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CongressionalDistrict Virginia VoterRegistrationSystemList to thecampaignandtheonly way

that Ivan Raiklincould obtainthedatabasewasto file his candidacyasan independent

candidate,triggeringanotherfiling fee of candidacy. Raiklin refusedto disownthe Republican

Partyandthuswasnot ableto obtainthe 9th CongressionalDistrict Virginia Voter Registration

SystemList to conducta properanalysisof the petitionsignaturesfrom the9th Congressional

District.

IV. ANALYSIS:

ISSUE 1: FINDLAY/RPV VOTING RIGHTSACT VIOLATION:

Did JohnFindlay, ExecutiveDirectorof the RepublicanPartyof Virginia in his official

capacity,while actingasan agentof theVirginia Departmentof Electionsduring the

pre-certificationprocessof political candidatesviolatetheVoting RightsAct, Section10101 (b) &

1stAmendmentto the U.S. Constitutionwhenhe refusedto conducta ballot accesspre-check

in a timely mannerandthreatenedto not conducta pre-checkof thecampaignif thecampaign

did not agreeto his unconstitutionaldelayof the pre-check?

TheVoting RightsAct in Title 52 USCSection10101 paragraph(b) titled "Intimidation,
threats,or coercion"clearly statesthat, "No person,whetheractingundercolorof law
or otherwise,shall intimidate,threaten,coerce,or attemptto intimidate,threaten,
or coerceanyotherpersonfor thepurposeof interferingwith the right of such
otherpersonto voteor to voteashemaychoose,or ofcausingsuchotherperson
to votefor, or not to votefor, anycandidatefor theoffice of President,Vice
President,presidentialelector.Memberof theSenate,or Memberof theHouseof
Representatives,Delegatesor Commissionersfrom theTerritoriesor possessions,at
anygeneral,special,or primaryelectionheldsolelyor in partfor thepurposeof
selectingor electinganysuchcandidate.

UnderVirginia law, the RepublicanPartyof Virginia ("RPV) hasa choice:if theywish to

havea closed.Republicans-onlynominationprocess,theyarefree to call and hold a party

convention,andusea variety of party-funded,party-runprocessesto ensurethatonly members
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of the political partyparticipatein the selection process, give themselves greatercontrolover

how that process, andnominatewho theydeem to besufficiently "Republican." But if theywant

the taxpayers ofVirginia to fund and administer theprimaryelection, thenstatelaw requires an

openprimary,where"eachregisteredvoter oftheCommonwealthshall be given an opportunity

to participatein the ... primary ofthe political party." Codeof Virginia § 24.2-545. As the Fourth

Circuit hasexplained,"a party isfree to selectfrom variousmethodsof nominationin which it

canexcludevoterswho do notshareits views It is only whenthe party choosesto hold a

primaryoperatedandfundedby thestatethat it mustallow all votersto participate." Millerv.

Brown, 503 R3d 360, 368 (4th Cir. 2007) (emphasisadded).

Virginia's political partiesdo not haveto usetaxpayermoneyandVirginia's electoral

machineryto selecttheir nominees. But here,that is preciselywhatthe RPV haschosento do.

And with thatchoice,comesconsequences,the mostsignificantis thattheparty mustallow all

votersto participate—notjust Republicans,but Independents,Libertarians,Greens,Democrats

andtheTeaParty. Given recenthistory, it isunderstandablewhy the partywishesto haveits

cakeandeatit too: a closedparty convention(1) costsmoney,andmustbe paid for bythe

party,and(2) tendsto electa candidatemoreconservativethanthatpreferredby the more

establishmentRepublicans.An openprimary, ontheotherhand,runsthe risk (at leastin the

eyesof someRepublicans)thatthewinner will not beconservativeenough. Oneanswerto this

Goldilocksdilemmais to try to rigthesystemto producea candidatethat is "just right" inthe

eyesof the Party'selders. Which is precisely what is atissuehere: a Partyself-createdhybrid,

wherethey seekthe political "benefits" of aRepublican-onlyaffair, yet paid for bythetaxpayers

of Virginia. This theycannotdo: oncethey madethechoiceto forego a convention andusethe

taxpayer-fundedopenprimary, the resultsmust be placed inthehandsof the voters—all the

voters, notjustthosethatthe party prefers.Sincethe RPVhaschosentheprimary method of
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selectingcandidates,it is now acting underthecolorof theSBE. For this reason,it is subjectto

thesamescrutinyasa stateentity would asit appliesto voting: TheVoting RightsAct, 1st

Anfiendment,14thAmendmentto the U.S. Constitution. By opting for the primary methodof

nomination,theRPV hasavaileditself asan arm of theCommonwealthof Virginia.

JohnFindlay, acting in his official capacityasthe ExecutiveDirectorof the RPV, under

color of law, Virginia Law (theorganizationchargedwith certifying RepublicanCandidatesto

appearon the primary ballot on behalfof theVirginia Departmentof Elections)in direct

contraventionof theVoting Rightsact, attemptedto anddid intimidate,threaten,coercethe

Raiklin campaignstaff to havetheeffectof Ivan E. Raiklin not appearingon the primary ballot.

JohnFindlay enteredthe room wherethe pre-checkcountwasbeingconducted,looked

paranoidandasked"whatwasgoing on?" He statedhedidn't like theway thecountwasgoing,

andthat hewould shutit down until thefollowing morningat 9am. Raiklin for US Senate

CampaignManager,NicholasHoskinsasked"why? Do you not like howthis is going?" Raiklin

for US SenatePolitical DirectorJacobCarasellastatedthat"beforeFindlay continued,we need

to haveIvan Raiklincomeup to hearthe reasonsfor calling off thecountfor transparencysake."

Hoskinsproceededto initiate aphonecall usingspeakerphoneto Raiklin at approximately1605.

Findlay statedthat "if vou interruptmeonemorefucking time. I amaoinato stopthis

countandvou won'tevenhavea chanceto do this pre-checi<andwill haveto go to the

VBE directly vwthouta check."emphasisadded. This is aclearindication of intimidatingand

threateningrhetorictowardsthe Ivan Raiklin for U.S.Senatecampaign. Findlay statedthat he

thoughthe wasbeing recorded,but in fact, Hoskinswasdialing Raiklin (whowasdownstairs

with childrenwho wereon their spring break)to getthecandidateupstairsto wherethecount

wasbeingconductedin orderfor transparencyof why thecountwasbeingcurtailed. Four

hoursinto thecount,the Raiklin campaignwastold to leaveandreturnthefollowing morningat
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9:00am. Pushingthe countto thefollowing daydeniedthecampaignanyability to recoverfrom

any issuesthatwould be identified in sucha count. Thecampaignpurposefullywantedto have

24 hourstime to recoverfrom a signaturepre-checkissue. The ExecutiveDirectorof the RPV's

decisionto not conducta timely pre-checkcoupledwith his wordsof intimidation ""if you

interruptmeonemorefucking time. I am going to stopthis countandvou won'teven

havea chanceto do this pre-checl<andwill haveto go to theVBE directly withouta

check." interferedand resultedin negatingtheexpressionof will of 12,691 petitioners.

Moreover,this denialwasthe initial proximatecauseof thesevoters' inability to voteshouldthey

haveintendedto vote for Ivan Raiklin inthe primary.

Acting undercolor of law asthe representativeof theVBE, the actusreasby the RPV

ED clearly showsa violation oftheVoting RightsAct, Title 52 USCSection10101 paragraph(b)

in thatthe RPV ED actedundercolor of law attemptedto andthroughhis decisionto movethe

pre-checkto the nextday to intimidate,threaten,andcoerced,membersof the Raiklin campaign

andto havetheeffectof denyingtheability to obtainsufficientsignaturesunderthe RPV'sown

methodology. This resultedIn the interfering withthe right of all petitionersto not havethe

ability to votefor a candidatetheysigneda petition for inthe office of US Senateat the primary

electionheld solelyor in partfor the purposeof selectingor electinganysuchcandidate.

ISSUE2: FINDLAY/RPV 14TH AMENDMENT EQUAL PROTECTIONCLAUSE VIOLATION

Did JohnFindlay, ExecutiveDirectorof the RepublicanPartyof Virginia in his official

capacity,while actingasan agentof theVirginia Departmentof Electionsduring the

pre-certlflcationprocessof politicalcandidatesviolate the 14thAmendmentto the U.S.

ConstitutionEqual ProtectionClausewhenheconductedthe ballot accesspre-checkof the Ivan
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Raiklin for USSenateCampaignin a uniquelydissimilarmannerto theotherfour U.S.Senate

Campaignsthatfiled their petitions?

"[T]he powerof thestatesto determinethemannerof holdingelectionsis limited bythe

Equal ProtectionClauseof the FourteenthAmendment." SocialistWorkersPartyv. Hechler,

890 F.2d1303,1309(4th Cir. 1989). Andsincethe RPVoptedfor a primaryratherthana

convention,it further availeditself to the limitations ofthe 14th Amendment,acting asthearm of

theVBE while determiningpetition signaturesufficiencyfor ballot access.

Theotherthreecampaignscompletedtheir pre-checkprocessin thesameday. One

U.S. Senatecampaignsubmittedon 12 March andcompletedthe pre-checkafterseveralhours

thesameday. AnotherU.S. Senatecampaignbypassedthe RPV andsubmittedtheir

signaturesto theVBE afterwards.A third campaignsubmittedtheir signatureson 26 Marchand

werecertified in severalhoursthesameday.

The RPV in itspre-andpostcertification ofcandidacyfor the Ivan Raiklin for U.S.Senate

campaignusedtheGOP DataCenterdatabaseto determinethe validity of qualifiedregistered

votersin Virginia. However,Virginia law requiresthatthe Departmentof ElectionsVirginia Voter

RegistrationSystembe usedwhenconductingcertification. (1VAC20-50-20)

By opting toconducta primary, triggeringtaxpayerdollars, the RPV becamean agent or

deputy oftheState'sBoard of Elections making itsubjectto thesameconstitutional restrictions

astheStateitself asit appliesto the14thAmendment. Plaintiffrequestsa preliminary

injunction hearingwith thetrial of theactionon the merits.

The RPV failed to follow a uniformprocedurefrom candidateto candidatein the ballot

accessvalidationprocess,using an incorrectdatabase(GOP DataCenter)andforcing plaintiff

to returnanotherday toconductthevalidationprocess,having the effect of denying ballot

accessfor lack of time to recoverfrom invalid signaturecollection.The RPV ED not only
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manifestlyabusedhis discretionin the mannerin which hedeterminedthe invalidity of the

signaturesby usingan incorrectdatabase,but alsodid soacting undercolor of law actingasan

arm of theVBE andthusthe RPV violatedthe Plaintiff's 14thamendmentequalprotection

clauserights.

ISSUE3. DEPARTMENT/BOARDOF ELECTIONS14thAMENDMENT DUE PROCESSAND

EQUAL PROTECTIONVIOLATIONS

Did theVirginia Boardof ElectionsandChristopherE. Piper,Commissionerof the

Virginia Boardof Electionsin his official capacityviolatethe U.S. Constitution's14thAmendment

Equal Protectionand Due ProcessClauseswhenthey refusedto hearplaintiffs' appealof the

ExecutiveDirectorof the RepublicanPartyof Virginia's decisionto disqualify Ivan Raiklin asa

candidatefor U.S. SenateCampaigndueto petitionsignatureinsufficiency?

On April 4, the Raiklin campaignfiled an appealof petition signatureinsufficiencywith

the Boardof Electionspursuantto 1VAC20-50-30within the required5 days.

On April 5, the Boardof Elections(BoE) respondedvia email and postalserviceto

Raiklin with a refusalto hearanappeal. The BoE statedthattheappealprocesswasonly

affordedto independentcandidatesanddid not applyto party nominees.In its response,the

Boardof Electionswrote, "Virginia law doesnot allow candidatesfor nominationby a party

primary toappealthis type of determinationto theStateBoardof Elections. Sections24.2-506

and24.2-543of the Codeof Virginia and 1VAC20-50-30[...] establishpetition requirementsand

appellateproceduresfor independentcandidates,which do notapply to candidatesfor

nominationby a political party. Instead,petition requirementsfor candidatesfor nominationby a

non-presidentialprimaryareestablishedby Va. CodeSection24.2-521. Section24.2-521does

not provide anavenueby which candidatesfor nomination by a primarycanappeala political
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party's determination that they have failed to submit sufficient petitionsignatures.As the laws

and regulation you reference do not apply toindividualswho are seeking theirpolitical party's

nomination in a primary election, andVirginia law doesnot authorizean appealfor candidates

for party nomination, thus youarenot eligiblefor anappealhearingpursuantto Section

24.2-506,anda hearingwill not bescheduled."

This memo by the VBE put all Virginians on noticethata petitioner thatsignsa petition

for an independentcandidateis afforded anappealby theVBE, however,thatsamepetitioner

is not affordedthe ability to appealshouldtheysign a petition for aRepublicanPartyCandidate

seekinga placeon the ballot for the RepublicanPartyprimary. "The chillingeffectthatsucha

practicehason associationalandvoting rights is obvious." SocialistWorkersParty,890 F.2d at

1309(quotingAndersonv. Mills, 664 F.2d 600, 609 (6th Cir. 1981)). Thosecitizens(qualified

registeredvotersof Virginia) who supportputting a Republicancandidateon the ballot—and

only thosecitizens-mustunderstandthat, shouldthe ExecutiveDirectorof the Partydecideto

excludetheir signature,they haveno recoursewhatsoever.Knowing thattheir petition

signaturemay or may notevencountat a whim uniquelydeterscitizensfrom participatingin the

Republicanprimary andcastsdoubtto sign a petition toplacea partycandidateon the primary

ballot. Becausethe RPV optedto conducta primaryelectionadministeredby thestateand

fundedby Virginia taxpayers,with statelaw requiringanopenprimary,where"eachregistered

voterof theCommonwealthshall begivenan opportunityto participatein the ... primary ofthe

political party" Codeof Virginia § 24.2-545,the 14thAmendment'sdueprocessclausewas

clearlyviolated by not allowing an appeal.

As the FourthCircuit hasexplained,"a party is free to selectfrom variousmethodsof

nominationin which it canexcludevoterswho do not shareits views.... It is only whenthe

party choosesto hold a primaryoperatedandfundedby thestatethat it mustallow all votersto
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participate." Millerv. Brown, 503 R3d 360, 368(4th Cir.2007)Thus, by choosinga primary,the

RPV availeditself to thedueprocessclauseof the 14thAmendment.

If we accepttheassertionby theVBE thatthe Party is thedecisionto placea candidate

on a ballot for a primaryrestssolelywith the party, thenwe acceptthatthejudge,jury and

executionerin decidingprimary candidatesrestswith oneor two Virginians, with no external

oversiteor ability to appealthis decision. The memothusdeniesplaintiff andthe 12,690other

petitionersno mechanismfor appealingan honestmistakeor a whimsicaldisqualificationmade

by the RPV. Allowing an agentof theState(RPV) to makearbitraryandcapriciousdecisionson

who getson the ballot for the U.S. Senateprimarywithout a mechanismfor an appealis

unconscionable.

ISSUE4. VIRGINIAS 1STAND 14TH AMENDMENT EQUAL PROTECTIONCLAUSE

VIOLATIONS

Virginia AdministrativeCode1VAC20-50-20sectionC. 5 andsectionE. 3 requiresa

petitionsignatureaddressbefrom thesameprecinctasthat listed in theVirginia Voter

RegistrationSystem-eventhoughthesignatureis from a qualified Virginia voterandfrom the

sameCongressionalDistrict. This denialof the basicright to voteviolatesthe 1stand 14th

Amendmentsto the U.S. Constitution.

The registeredvotersof Virginia supportingIvan Raiklin for U.S. Senate-whosignedhis

nominationpetition, to includeRaiklin himself-possesstwo clearlyestablishedand

independentlyprotectablerights underthefirst amendment:
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Thefirst, is "the right of individualsto associatefor theadvancementof political beliefs,

andthe right of qualified voters,regardlessof their political persuasion","to casttheir votes

effectively" for thecandidateof their choice","rank amongour mostpreciousfreedoms".

Williams v. Rhodes,393 U.S. 23,30 (1968). Illinois StateBoardof Electionsv. Socialist

WorkersParty, supra,at 184. "No right is morepreciousin a free countrythanthatof having a

voice in the electionof thosewho servethe public." Wesberryv. Sanders,376 U.S. 1,17(1964)

The"Right to vote is 'heavily burdened'if thatvote may becastonly for oneof two

candidates...ata time whenothercandidatesareclamoringfor a placeon the ballot." Lubin v.

Parrish,415 U.S. 709, 716 (1974).

Furthermore,"the right of an individual to a placeon a ballot is entitledto protectionand

is intertwinedwith the rightsof voters...." Id.; seeIllinois StateBoardof Electionsv. Socialist

WorkersParty,supra,at 184. Accessto the ballot is thusnot only a protectedright in itself, but

representsan integralelementin theeffectiveimplementationandexerciseof the rightsof

political associationandof voters.

The infringementof theserights becomesmagnifieddueto the peculiarnatureof the

Virginia US SenateRepublicanprimary. Ordinarily inanelection,a voterhastheopportunityto

write in the nameof the candidateof his choiceshouldsuchcandidatenot appearon the ballot.

In party primariesfor US Senatein Virginia, however,this opportunitydoesnot exist (Virginia

Code§ 24.2-644.Voting by paperballot; voting forpresidentialelectors;write-in votes. C. At all

electionsexceptprimaryelectionsit shall be lawful for anyvoterto votefor any personother

thanthe listed candidatesfor theoffice by writing or handprinting theperson'snameon the

official ballot, (emphasisadded)

In Illinois StateBoardof Electionsv. SocialistWorkersParty, 440U.S, 173, 184(1979)

the US Supremecourtexpressedthat restrictionson accessto ballot implicatethe right to vote.
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Whensuchfundamentalrightsasthefreedomto associateasa political partyandthe right to

castvoteseffectivelyareat stake,a Statemustestablishthat its regulationof ballot accessis

necessaryto servea compellinginterest.Pp. 440 U. S. 184-185. "[E]ven when pursuinga

legitimateinterest,a Statemay not choosemeansthat unnecessarilyrestrictconstitutionally

protectedliberty," Kusperv.Pontikes,414 U. S. 51.414 U. S. 58-59.andStatesmustadoptthe

leastdrasticmeansto achievetheir ends.This requirementis particularly importantwhere

restrictionson accessto the ballot areinvolved. Pp. 440 U. S. 186-187.

In Andersonv PoythressNO. C80-1671ACivil Action (26SEP1980)Although states

havesignificantpowerto regulatetheelectoralprocess,"The powercannotbeexercisedin

sucha mannerasto violateotherspecificprovisionsof theConstitution" (page9, (50)) "A

fundamentalrequirementof proceduraldueprocessis theopportunityto be heard"at a

meaningfultime and in a meaningfulmanner,"Armstrongv. Fanzo,380 U.S. 545, 552 (1965)

(emphasisadded). This opportunitymustbe"appropriateto the natureof thecase."Mullane v.

CentralHanoverBank& TrustCo., 339 U.S. 306, 313 (1950). "The very natureof dueprocess

negatesany conceptof inflexible proceduresuniversallyapplicableto everyimaginable

situation."Cafeteria& RestaurantWorkers,Local 473v. McElroy,367 U.S. 886, 895 (1961). p.

9, (50).

In Andersonv. Celebrezze460 U.S. 780 (1983)TheCourtdemandeda threepart testto

determinethe 1stAmendmentConstitutionalityof StateBallot AccessLaws. First, acourtmust

considertheweightof the injury to the plaintiff's fundamentalrights. Second,a courtmust

identify the legitimatestateinterests.Finally, a courtmustdeterminetheextentto which the

legitimatestateinterestsmustimposeburdenson thefundamentalrights.
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1. Weight of theiniurv to the plaintiff's fundamentalriaht-The right to vote isoneof the most

importantandfundamentalrights thata citizen hasin the United States. It is the basis

for shapingourgovernmentand political systemby choosing theindividualsthat govern

andrepresentthe people. Denying qualifiedregisteredvotersfrom thecorrect

congressionaldistrict from signinga petition for a USSenatecandidatehasno placein

our democracy.

2. A courtmustidentify the legitimatestateinterests-Thestate'sinterestin this instance,is

oneof administrativeconvenienceof ensuringvotersvotedat thecorrectprecinctfrom

which they areregistered,however,to denythesevoterstheability to sign a petition due

to a changeof addresssuchasa studentmoving from onepartof Blacksburg,VA to

anotherfor the nextsemester,is not legitimate. This administrativeconvenience

infringeson a voter'sability to votefor thecandidateof their choosingby denyingthat

candidatefrom evenappearingon the ballot. Denyingthe right to vote basedon a

precinctmismatchfor administrativeconveniencemaintainsa watchfuleyeon a

registeredvoter, it however, is not narrowly drawn and thestateinterestis not compelling

to denythatfundamentalright to vote.

3. A courtmustdeterminetheextentto which the legitimatestateinterestsmustimpose

burdenson thefundamentalriohts-WhentheVBE andthe RPV actingasits agent

invalidatessignaturesfrom the propercongressionaldistrict, but not inthesame

precinct,theVBE violatesthevoting rights ofthesepetitioners. The denial of atleast97

signaturesfrom the 9thCongressionaldistrict had the effect ofinvalidatingthe remaining

over 12,500 petitionsignaturesthat intendedto havetheopportunityseeand possibly

votefor Ivan Raiklin inthe U.S. RepublicanPartyprimaryelection.
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Unlike in AndersonV. Poythress,Raiklln'ssignatureswereinvalidatednot becauseof

illegibility or non registration,but dueto a precinctmismatch,somethingwritten into theVirginia

codefor administrativeconvenienceto moreeasilykeeptrackof registeredvoters,but not to

outrightdenythemtheir right to vote. This sectionof thecode,thenconstitutionallydeniedover

106petitionersthe right to votewhich byextensiondeniedthe remainingover12,500petitioners

to seea candidateof their choosingon theballot. This 106figure wasdeterminedbasedoff of

theGOPDataCenterdatadueto thefact thatasof Friday4/27/2018,theVBE had refusedto

releasethe Plaintiff the9th CongressionalDistrict Virginia Voter RegistrationSystemList, as

they claimedthat Ivan Raiklin wasnot a candidateandthusdid not fall into thecategoryof

individualsor entitiesthatareauthorizedto purchasedata/listsfrom theVirginia Voter

RegistrationSystem. Denyingthe right to vote in favor of administrativeconveniencecannot

deletewell rootedconstitutionalandfederal rights of suffrageandvoting. Disqualifyingpetition

signaturesunder1VAC 20-50-20C5 andE3 is not the leastrestrictivemeansof promotinga

stateinterest. Thestate'sinterestof limiting the numberof candidatesthatappearon the ballot

to thosethatareseriousandhavea modicumof supportthroughoutthestateis acknowledged.

And it doesso, by requiringa statewidecandidateto obtaina minimum of10,000signatures

from registeredVirginia voterscoupledwith a minimum of400signaturesof registeredVirginia

votersfrom eachof the 11 congressionaldistricts. This campaignmetthat petition signature

threshold.

"A Statemay limit... accessto theballot only to theextentthata sufficiently weighty

stateinterestjustifiesthe restriction.Any severerestrictionmustbe narrowlydrawnto advance

a stateinterestof compellingimportance.Seeid., at 184,186.Pp. 288-289. Administrative

conveniencedoesnot justify denyinga qualified registeredvoterthe right to sign a petitionthat

placesa candidateon the ballot in a primaryelection. As in Normanv. Reed502 U.S. 279
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(1992) where the Court used strictscrutiny,thisstatuteis overlyburdensomeon the

fundamentalright to vote and thusviolative of the Firstand Fourteenth Amendmentright to the

freedomof association.

"[T]he power of thestatesto determinethe mannerof holding elections islimited by the

Equal ProtectionClauseof the FourteenthAmendment." SocialistWorkersPartyv. IHechler,

890 F.2d 1303,1309(4th Cir. 1989). Disqualifyingvalid 9thCongressionalDistrict registered

VotersviolatesthatClausein two ways.

First, this requirementwill disenfranchisevoterswho wish to votefor a candidatefor U.S.

Senatebut who will not beableto, astheir statusasa rigisteredvoter is not qualified for a

petitionsignature,but qualified to casta vote in the primarywith no changein registration

status.

Second,to penalizea registeredvoter in Virginia from thecorrectdistrict for not placing

an addressfrom thesameprecinctasthey registeredin theVirginia Voter RegistrationSystem

is a constitutionallyunacceptablepricefor participatingin democracy,particularlywhenstate

law (1) allowsthe party to havea Republican-onlynominatingconvention,wherethis

requirementis not placed,andabsentthat, requires(2) a taxpayer-fundedopenprimary that, in

thewordsof the FourthCircuit, "mustallow all votersto participate." Miller, 503 F.3d at368.

1VAC20-50-20 allows for adiscrepancyin the petitionerssignedaddressascompared

with theonein theVirginia Voter RegistrationSystem,however, itdoesnot countthevery same

Virginia RegisteredVoter towardsthe petition countif theaddressis from a different precinct.

Thus, acollegestudentwho registeredto voteat their addresslastsemestera few

blocks away, and wrote their currentaddresson thepetition formthat is located in a different

precinct is disqualified, while hisroommatewho lived a few blocks away in theotherdirection

hastheir petition countbecauseit waslocated inthesameprecinct. Thisrequirementof
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administrativeconveniencehasa chilling effect of disqualifyingthosethat legitimatelyhavethe

right to vote, to not do so,amidsta time in ourpolitical conversationwheremanyare suspectat

how manyunqualifiedor illegal votesarecasts.

Againstall this, thereis nostateinterestthat is compellingenoughto justify turningaway

qualified registeredvotersfrom thecorrectdistrict to beconsideredqualified in a petition

signaturecount. Denyingthesepetitionerstheability to votefor thecandidateof their chosing

andtheir ability to appealthedecisionof the RPV "servesno purposewhatever,exceptto have

a chilling effecton thevoter." SocialistWorkersParty,890 F.2d at 1309. JustastheRPV or the

StateBoardcould not adopta rule thatservedto excludeAfrican Americanvotersfrom

participatingin its primary,asthe DemocraticPartyattemptedin Texas,Smith v. Allwright, 321

U. S. 649 (1944),or createa pre-primaryby anothernamethat is intendedto excludeminority

voters,onceagainasthe DemocraticPartyattemptedin a TexasCountyin Terry v. Adams,345

U. S. 461 (1953),whena partyadoptsa policy in astate-funded,state-administeredelection

that hasthesolepurposeof deterringregisteredvotersfrom exercisingtheir constitutional right

to vote, itcauses"a violation of the potential [voters'] First andFourteenthAmendmentrights."

SocialistWorkersParty,890 F.2d at 1309.

The FirstAmendmentforbids denying acitizen'sright to vote in thestate-funded,

state-administeredelectionfor the Republicanprimary."[VVlhen the party choosesto hold a

primaryoperatedand funded by thestate... it mustallow all votersto participate." Miller,

503 F.3d at 368(emphasisadded). Requiring aprecinctmatch foradministrativeconvenience,

is far moreinvasiveandburdensomeon First Amendmentfreedomsthan merely requiringvoter

registrationasa conditionof participatingin a partyprimary. TheVBE and by extension, the

RPVcannotcircumvent thatrequirementby invalidatingotherwisevalid petitionsignaturesfrom

qualifiedVirginia registered voters from being counted towards the required 400signatures
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necessaryfor a congressionaldistrict to beconsideredsufficient toplacea candidateon the

ballot. Not countingthesesignaturesdeniesthesepetitioners' right to vote andthusviolates

plaintiffs 1stand 14thAmendments.

V. REMEDY: PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION

The purposeof a temporaryinjunction is to preservethestatusquoandpreventirreparable

injury pendingresolutionof the meritsof the case. Thefour factorsfor a preliminary injunction

clearlyweigh in Plaintiffs' favor. The FourthCircuit follows thefamiliar four factor testfor

grantinga preliminary injunction: "1) Hasthe petitionermadea strongshowingthat it is likely to

prevail uponthemerits? 2) Hasthe petitionershownthatwithout suchrelief it will suffer

irreparableinjury? 3) Wouldthe issuanceof the injunction substantiallyharmotherinterested

parties?4) Whereinlies the public interest?" BlackwelderFurnitureCompanyof Statesvillev.

Seilig ManufacturingCompany,550 F.2d 189,193(4th Cir.1999).

PLAINTIFF WILL LIKELY SUCCEEDON THE MERITS

The "rightto vote freely forthecandidateof one'schoiceis theessenceof a democratic

society, and any restrictions on that right strike at the heart ofrepresentativegovernment."

Reynolds, 377 U.S. at 555. "Other rights, even the most basic, areillusory ifthe right to vote is

undermined." Wesberryv. Sanders,376 U.S.1,17(1964). AtstakehereareVirginians' right to

vote andplaintiffs havestrongargumentsthat this rightwasunlawfully deniedunderthe Voting

Rights Act,the First andFourteenthAmendmentsto the U.S. Constitution.

First, plaintiffswill suffer irreparableharmabsentan injunction. "A plaintiffs harm from

thedenialof a preliminary injunction isirreparableif it is not fully compensableby monetary

damages."CertifiedRestoration Dry Cleaningv. Tenke Corp., 511 F.3d 535, 550 (6thCir. 2007).
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And when "constitutional rightsarethreatenedor impaired,irreparableinjury is presumed."

Obamafor Am. v. Husted,697 R3d 423,436 (6th Cir. 2012). Ashasalreadybeenshown, a

requirementfor a precinctmatchamountsto an unlawful restriction onthe right to vote. Sincea

"restriction onthefundamentalright to vote...constitutesirreparableinjury," ibid., this factor

weighsheavily in favor of grantingthe injunction. SeealsoWilliams v. Salerno,792 F.2d323,

326(2d Cir.1986)(finding thatthedenialof the right to vote is "irreparableharm").

Second,no interestedpartywill sufferharmfrom an injunction. TheSBE will no doubt

arguethat it is merelyeffectuatingthewill of the RPV, who in turn will argueit properlyusedan

incorrectdatabasewith no malice intended. If the partydid not wantto avail itself to thevoter

protectionsemanatingfrom 1stand 14thamendments,it shouldhaveoptedto run itsown

primary or convention,not onefundedby thetaxpayersof theCommonwealthof Virginia. By

askingthestateto fund and run theprimary,the party becamean arm oftheSBEandtheSBE

required to affordthesamerights ofdueprocessto petitionersfor partisancandidatesand gave

up its ability to restrictparticipation. Thus,thestate"must allow allvotersto participate." Miller,

503 F.3d at 368.

Third, the public interestis in plaintiffs favor. Statessurely have"a stronginterestin

their ability to enforcestateelection lawrequirements."Hunterv. HamiltonCnty. Bd. of

Elections,635 F.3d 219,244 (6th Cir. 2011). Buttheyhaveno interestin enforcingan

unconstitutionalrule. Moreover,the public hasa "stronginterestin exercisingthe 'fundamental

political right' to vote." Purcellv. Gonzalez, 549 U.S. 1, 4, (2006) (quoting Dunnv. Blumstein,

405 U.S. 330,336(1972)). "Thatinterestis bestservedby favoringenfranchisementand

ensuring thatqualifiedvoters'exerciseof their right to vote issuccessful."Hunter, 635F.3d at

244.
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The public hasan interestin free andfair elections,the UnitedStatespridesitself in

beingthebeaconof global democracy.Enjoining servesthepublicinterestin two ways. Itwill

allow votersto votefor whom theywish andwill afford the 14thAmendment'sdueprocessright

to Plaintiff and petitioners.

VI. CONCLUSION

For all theabovereasons,disqualifyingqualified registeredVirginia votersfrom

the9th congressionaldistrict dueto a precinctmismatchis illegal on at leastfour

different basesandshouldbeenjoined. But not onlyarethe Defendants'attemptto

denythefundamentalright to voteof manypetitioners/votersillegal, it is also

un-Virginian. AsJamesMadison—oneof thegreatestVirginiansto everlive—^wrote:

"Who areto betheelectorsof the FederalRepresentatives?Not the rich morethanthe

poor; not the learnedmorethanthe ignorant;not the haughtyheirsof distinguished

names,morethanthe humblesonsof obscureand unpropitiousfortune. Theelectors

areto bethegreatbodyof the peopleof the United States." The Federalist,No. 57

(Cookeed. 1961),at 385. And it all startswith placinga candidatesnameon the

primary ballot intoday'stwo party system. JamesMadisonwascorrect. This Court

shouldthusgrantPlaintiff's motionandenteran orderrestrainingtheSBEfrom printing

ballotsandsendingabsenteeballotswithout thecandidate'sname,Ivan E. Raiklin,as

oneof thecandidatesseekingthe Republicanprimary U.S. Senatenominationfor 2018,

until a final judgmentis enteredin this case.

M 10 201
>
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Eachdocumentfiled with thecourtby aproselitigant shall bearthefollowing certification:

CERTIFICATION

I declareunder penaltyofpeijury that:

(1) No attorney has prepared, or assisted in thepreparationofthis document.

(2)

NameofProSe Party (Pwnt or Type)

SignatureofProSeParty

Executedon: _(Date)

OR

(NameofAttorney)

(AddressofAttorney)

(TelephoneNumberofAttorney)
Prepared, or assisted in the preparation of, this document.

(NameofProSe Party(Print or Type)

SignatureofProSe Party

Executed on: (Date)
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